
PUBLIC/LEGAL NOTICE 

 
The regular monthly Board meeting of the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board of Trustees will be held on November 13, 2019 at 7:00 

pm in the Meeting Room of the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, Illinois. The LLD records all regular Board meetings. Any 

person who has a disability requiring accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the Lisle Library during regular 

business hours within 48 hours before the meeting. Requests for a qualified interpreter require three working days advance notice. 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

November 13, 2019 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 

a. President Hummel and Trustee Sullivan reviewed the October billings in November 

b. Treasurer Norton and Trustee Duffy will review the November billings in December 

4. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the October 9, 2019 Board Meeting 

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 10/31/19, Investment Activity Report, 10/31/19, Current Assets 

Report, 10/31/19, Revenue Report, 10/31/19, and Expense Report, 10/31/19 

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 11/13/19 

5. Committee Reports 

a. Finance 

b. Personnel/Policy 

c. Physical Plant 

6. Staff Reports 

a. Director’s Report 

b. Assistant Director’s Report 

7. Unfinished Business 

8. New Business 

a. Adopt Ordinance 19-04: Levy - Action Required 

Annual ordinance levying taxes for corporate purposes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and 

ending June 30, 2020. 

b. Approve Certification of Compliance with TITA - Action Required 

Annual certificate of compliance with the truth in taxation law. 

c. Approve Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) contribution - Action Required 

Affirm 19/20 budgeted $50,000 funding to IMRF for retirement and disability benefits. 

d. Approve LLD Policy 635: Signs and Displaying Promotional Literature and Materials - Action Required 

Accept merge of LLD Policies 640 and 635, with modifications, to new LLD Policy 635: Signs and 

Displaying Promotional Literature and Materials 

e. Approve LLD Policy 610: Patron Code of Conduct - Action Required 

Accept modifications to LLD Policy 610: Patron Code of Conduct. 

f. Approve LLD Policy 201: Board of Trustees Code of Conduct & Ethics - Action Required 

Accept LLD Policy 201: Board of Trustees Code of Conduct & Ethics. 

g. Approve LLD Policy 705: Construction, Capital Improvements, and Contractual Services - Action Required 

Accept modifications to LLD Policy 705: Construction, Capital Improvements, and Contractual Services. 

h. Trustee conference reports 

Reports by Trustees who attended the 2019 ILA Annual Conference. 

9. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

Bartelli, Duffy, Hummel, Larson, Norton, Sullivan, Swistak 

10. Adjourn 

1 



 

1 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD MEETING 

October 9, 2019 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 

Present: 

Thomas Hummel - President 

Marjorie Bartelli - Vice President 

Jenny Norton - Treasurer 

Emily Swistak - Secretary 

Thomas Duffy - Trustee 

Karen Larson - Trustee 

Liz Sullivan - Trustee 

 

Also present: 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director 

Chris Knight - Recording Secretary 

Will Savage - Director of Youth Services 

Michael Del Valle - Auditor, Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak 

 

Two visitors addressed the Board. The first visitor stated she was impressed that the Board moved forward 

with the HVAC project. She also commented about Board discussion regarding a downtown option for the 

Library and stated concerns regarding traffic and patron safety. The second visitor commented that he had 

concerns regarding a downtown plan because he wanted to ensure that the Library had total control over 

its building and land. He stated that he was impressed that the Board is discussing the building’s 

deficiencies and looking to solve the facility’s problems to better serve the community.  

 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 

a. Vice President Bartelli and Trustee Larson reviewed the September billings in October 

b. President Hummel and Trustee Sullivan will review the October billings in November 

 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approve Minutes of the September 18, 2019 Public Hearing for Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance 

b. Approve Minutes of the September 18, 2019 Board Meeting 

c. Approve Minutes of the September 26, 2019 Special Board Meeting 

d. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 08/31/19, Treasurer’s Report, 09/30/19, Investment Activity 

Report, 09/30/19, Current Assets Report, 09/30/19, Revenue Report, 09/30/19, and Expense 

Report, 09/30/19 

e. Authorize Payment of Bills, 10/9/19 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

President Hummel asked for a motion to move agenda item 8a to be the next agenda item. 

 

2 



 

2 
 

MOTION: Treasurer Norton made a motion to move item 8a up to the next item on the agenda. Trustee 

Sullivan seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

5. Accept Annual Audit - Action Required 

 

Michael DeValle from Lauterbach & Amen introduced himself to the Board. Mr. DeValle provided an 

overview of the audit. 

 

Discussion: Trustee Duffy asked for a recommendation regarding the timeline for an updated 

appraisal. Mr. DeValle stated that there is no set timeline to obtain an appraisal and that it is at the 

discretion of the LLD. Trustee Sullivan asked about Mr. DeValle’s comment regarding IMRF. Mr. 

DeValle clarified his statement.  

 

President Hummel asked for a motion to accept the annual audit. 

 

MOTION: Trustee Sullivan moved to accept the annual audit. Trustee Larson seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

6. Committee Reports 

a. Finance - Treasurer Norton stated the Committee met on September 24th and provided an 

overview of that meeting. Treasurer Norton stated that the Committee does not have a meeting 

scheduled. 

 

Discussion: Trustee Sullivan asked how long the Library has worked with Ehlers. Director 

Weinstein and President Hummel estimated 6 years. Trustee Sullivan asked if the Library 

was planning to assess new investment firms. Treasurer Norton stated that due to a 

significant retirement at Ehlers, and because the LLD has recently hired Sikich to undertake 

financial tasks, that the LLD would reevaluate investment firms at a later date.  

 

b. Personnel/Policy - The Committee did not meet. Secretary Swistak read a list of available 

dates/times and asked members which date was best for the next meeting. The Committee 

members agreed to meet on Wednesday, November 6th at 6pm. 

c. Physical Plant - The Committee did not meet. Vice President Bartelli stated that the Committee 

does not have another meeting scheduled. 

  

7. Staff Reports 

 

Director Weinstein mentioned that the IL Per Capita Grant application deadline was approaching and that 

Board members will soon have assignments to complete the Trustee portion of the application. The 

Director provided updates on the My Library Rewards reading incentive program.  She also stated there 

have been some inconsistencies regarding the new people-counter, and that Assistant Director McQuillan 

would have more information in her report. 

 

Discussion: Trustee Sullivan asked if the Board would receive a report on database usage. Director 

Weinstein stated that the Board was provided a report last January, and that she would provide an 

update report this coming January. President Hummel referred to the Lisle Woman’s Club 56th 

anniversary mention included in the Director’s report. 

3 



 

3 
 

 

Trustee Duffy asked about public restroom cleanliness and costs related to more cleaning.  Vice 

President Bartelli asked about onsite custodial staff and LLD Facility Monitors. Assistant Director 

McQuillan explained the various job duties of the Facility Monitors. 

 

Assistant Director McQuillan explained the current problems with the people-counter. 

 

Secretary Swistak complimented the new outdoor book drops. 

 

Trustee Sullivan wanted to know if the Board would agree to eliminate some of the pages from the 

financial reports in the Board packet and keep the summaries. Board members agreed to keep the 

packet as-is, but to print the packet double-sided for the next month. 

 

Trustee Duffy asked about attendance numbers for the Youth Services Saturday programming. Will 

Savage discussed the increase in attendance at Saturday programming. Trustee Duffy asked about 

the new outreach opportunities mentioned in the Youth Services Quarterly Report. Will Savage 

expanded on the new outreach opportunities. 

 

Trustee Sullivan voiced concerns regarding reciprocal patrons being able to schedule a 30 minute 

appointment with a librarian.  Director Weinstein explained that other libraries perform this service 

and that many reference transactions at the LLD occur without appointments and they may last 20-

30 minutes.  Trustee Sullivan commented that she found this to be an operational inefficiency.  

President Hummel stated that the Board will look into overall efficiencies once facility plans 

commence.   

 

President Hummel mentioned the collaboration with the Lisle Park District and a young LLD patron 

regarding an Eagle Scout project installing “mini-branch” libraries at various parks throughout Lisle. 

 

8. Unfinished Business - None 

 

9. New Business 

a. Approve Resolution 19-07: Resolution to Determine Estimate of Funds - Action Required 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to approve Resolution 19-07: Resolution to Determine Estimate of 

Funds. Secretary Swistak seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

 

Secretary Swistak commented about the Saturday Youth Services programing; Cookies & Crayons and 

STEM. She was happy to see Library staff doing outreach at the Lisle Park District. Treasurer Norton 

mentioned she appreciated the thoughtful public comments. She said she’d like the Board to consider 

honoring the history of the LLD in a more permanent way. Trustee Larson suggested having a special event 

to honor the history of the Library. Trustee Duffy commented on the 2020 Census. Director Weinstein 

stated that Librarians are training for the 2020 census and anticipate patrons coming in to fill out the 

census online. Vice President Bartelli stated she was impressed with the Library’s new auditor. She also 

mentioned she appreciates the automatic renewals. She also mentioned the ComEd energy efficiency 

program facility assessment and recommended it be addressed at an upcoming Physical Plant Committee. 

 

4 



 

4 
 

11. Adjourn 

MOTION: Secretary Swistak moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye 

The meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 

 

Recorded by 

 

____________________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the Board of Trustees on November 13, 2019. 

Approved by 

 

_____________________________________ 

Emily Swistak, Secretary of the LLD Board of Trustees 

5 



6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



19 



20 



21 



22 



23 



24 



25 



26 



27 



28 



29 



30 



31 



32 



33 



34 



35 



36 



37 



38 



39 



40 



41 



42 



43 



44 



45 



M
o

n
th

ly
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
9

O
ct

-1
9

Y
T

D
 F

Y
 1

8
/1

9
Y

T
D

 F
Y

 1
9

/2
0

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

C
h

ec
ko

u
ts

R
e

n
e

w
al

s
TO

TA
LS

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
5

,4
5

1
3

,5
5

3
9

,0
0

4
3

3
,6

5
3

3
6

,1
8

4
7

.5
2

%

A
d

u
lt

 P
ri

n
t

5
,6

9
0

4
,0

1
0

9
,7

0
0

3
8

,4
3

6
4

1
,3

7
1

7
.6

4
%

A
d

u
lt

 T
o

ta
l

1
1

,1
4

1
7

,5
6

3
1

8
,7

0
4

7
2

,0
8

9
7

7
,5

5
5

7
.5

8
%

YS
 N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t

1
,0

8
5

1
,2

4
4

2
,3

2
9

8
,8

0
4

1
1

,1
2

4
2

6
.3

5
%

YS
 P

ri
n

t
6

,7
4

4
5

,4
2

1
1

2
,1

6
5

4
4

,3
0

8
5

3
,3

4
5

2
0

.4
0

%

To
ta

l Y
S

7
,8

2
9

6
,6

6
5

1
4

,4
9

4
5

3
,1

1
2

6
4

,4
6

9
2

1
.3

8
%

D
ig

it
al

 M
ed

ia

O
ve

rd
ri

ve
2

,5
2

7
2

,5
2

7
7

,8
7

8
1

0
,3

4
4

3
1

.3
0

%

h
o

o
p

la
1

,9
3

0
1

,9
3

0
7

,4
9

9
7

,9
9

3
6

.5
9

%

R
B

 D
ig

it
al

3
8

4
3

8
4

6
7

2
1

,4
6

5
1

1
8

.0
1

%

To
ta

l D
ig

it
al

4
,8

4
1

0
4

,8
4

1
1

6
,0

4
9

1
9

,8
0

2
2

3
.3

8
%

Su
b

to
ta

l P
ri

n
t 

+ 
N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t/

D
ig

it
al

2
3

,8
1

1
1

4
,2

2
8

3
8

,0
3

9
1

4
1

,2
5

0
1

6
1

,8
2

6
1

4
.5

7
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
Lo

gi
n

s
2

,6
2

9
2

,6
2

9
1

0
,4

8
0

1
0

,6
1

8
1

.3
2

%

D
at

ab
as

e 
U

sa
ge

/U
n

iq
u

e 
Lo

gi
n

s
2

,7
9

3
2

,7
9

3
1

2
,2

5
8

1
0

,9
4

9
-1

0
.6

8
%

W
ir

el
es

s 
U

se
1

,5
6

3
1

,5
6

3
6

,5
4

0
6

,0
9

4
-6

.8
2

%

Sc
an

n
X

 s
es

si
o

n
s/

jo
b

s
6

3
5

6
3

5
1

,5
5

1
4

,6
9

0
2

0
2

.3
9

%

M
u

se
u

m
 A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 P

as
se

s
2

3
2

3
1

2
0

1
2

0
0

.0
0

%

To
ta

l I
T/

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

Se
ss

io
n

s
7

,6
4

3
0

7
,6

4
3

3
0

,9
4

9
3

2
,4

7
1

4
.9

2
%

To
ta

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
3

1
,4

5
4

1
4

,2
2

8
4

5
,6

8
2

1
7

2
,1

9
9

1
9

4
,2

9
7

1
2

.8
3

%

Li
te

ra
cy

 S
o

ft
w

ar
e 

U
sa

ge
 H

o
u

rs
9

0
3

8
6

3
5

0
-9

.3
3

%

B
o

rr
o

w
er

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

O
ct

 2
0

1
9

 T
o

ta
l

Y
T

D
 1

8
/1

9
Y

T
D

 1
9

/2
0

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

N
ew

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
ar

d
s 

A
d

d
ed

1
2

5
6

0
4

5
6

6
-6

.2
9

%

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

3
,0

4
3

1
2

,2
9

3
1

2
,8

8
9

4
.8

5
%

To
ta

l #
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

1
0

,5
0

3
1

0
,9

1
6

1
0

,5
0

3
-3

.7
8

%

In
te

rL
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

en
t

1
4

0
5

9
2

5
4

9
-7

.2
6

%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

4
1

1
1

,6
0

9
1

,5
8

1
-1

.7
4

%

P
o

la
ri

s/
C

at
al

o
g 

H
o

ld
s

H
o

ld
s 

P
la

ce
d

3
,0

7
2

1
2

,1
3

7
1

2
,1

4
5

0
.0

7
%

H
o

ld
s 

C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t 

2
,4

0
0

9
,4

0
4

9
,4

7
9

0
.8

0
%

46 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

gr
am

 a
n

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
- 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

0
1

9

Li
b

W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

TS
/C

ir
c

Li
te

ra
cy

TO
TA

L
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

8
/1

9
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

9
/2

0
 %

 C
h

an
ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

4
5

5
4

7
2

1
2

8
5

5
8

5
4

7
-1

.9
7

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
4

0
1

,1
2

1
5

6
2

3
1

,4
4

0
5

,0
2

3
5

,2
8

0
5

.1
2

%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

4
3

3
1

0
3

2
3

4
6

.2
5

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
0

3
0

5
4

5
7

9
1

5
2

9
2

.4
1

%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
3

0
3

1
2

1
2

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

9
5

0
9

5
4

8
4

4
0

5
-1

6
.3

2
%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
2

2
3

4
3

3
.3

3
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

4
0

1
4

0
1

5
9

0
7

2
6

2
3

.0
5

%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

2
3

1
5

8
4

7
5

1
4

3
6

0
5

5
9

7
-1

.3
2

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
4

0
1

3
4

5
1

,1
5

1
5

6
2

8
1

,9
8

1
6

,1
7

6
6

,5
6

3
6

.2
7

%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,3
8

4
1

,5
2

9
2

,9
4

4
6

,8
5

7
2

6
,0

7
5

2
6

,8
7

1
3

.0
5

%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
7

.5
0

1
9

.0
0

2
6

.5
0

6
0

5
.5

0
5

1
0

.5
0

-1
5

.6
9

%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

2
1

0
3

1
5

5
9

6
7

1
3

.5
6

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
4

6
7

1
3

6
3

8
2

2
3

,1
3

3
4

,0
4

3
2

9
.0

5
%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
3

3
9

9
0

.0
0

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

8
3

1
8

3
4

6
4

5
5

6
1

9
.8

3
%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

5
1

0
3

1
8

6
8

7
6

1
1

.7
6

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2

2
9

7
1

3
6

3
1

,0
0

5
3

,5
9

7
4

,5
9

9
2

7
.8

6
%

C
iv

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

se
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
8

8
3

7
6

3
2

8
-1

2
.7

7
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
2

8
7

9
9

8
2

4
.0

5
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g
1

4
,5

9
9

5
8

,2
3

8
5

9
,3

3
8

1
.8

9
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
2

5
5

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

3
0

5
4

4
2

4
3

3
-2

.0
4

%

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
1

,8
4

7
6

,5
0

6
6

,5
4

9
0

.6
6

%

Tw
it

te
r 

Fo
llo

w
e

rs
7

9
2

7
4

5
7

9
2

6
.3

1
%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

1
,0

9
9

1
,5

6
2

3
,7

0
5

1
3

7
.2

0
%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
1

4
,3

5
2

4
8

,5
7

2
3

6
,6

5
8

-2
4

.5
3

%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
4

9
0

N
/A

 *
2

,2
9

9
--

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
e 

fo
r 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
.

47 



48 



49 



50 



51 



52 



53 



54 



55 



56 



57 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

gr
am

 a
n

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
- 

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
9

Li
b

W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

TS
/C

ir
c

Li
te

ra
cy

TO
TA

L
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

8
/1

9
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

9
/2

0
 %

 C
h

an
ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

7
5

7
6

9
2

1
5

5
1

3
7

1
5

5
1

3
.1

4
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
7

2
1

,0
3

4
7

7
2

3
1

,4
0

6
1

,3
7

3
1

,4
0

6
2

.4
0

%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

4
2

2
8

9
8

-1
1

.1
1

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
0

1
8

3
4

1
2

4
4

1
7

0
.8

3
%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
2

3
5

6
5

-1
6

.6
7

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

9
1

1
4

6
2

3
7

3
3

2
2

3
7

-2
8

.6
1

%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
2

2
2

2
0

.0
0

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

3
2

5
3

2
5

4
6

0
3

2
5

-2
9

.3
5

%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

2
3

3
6

2
6

9
4

1
7

0
1

5
4

1
7

0
1

0
.3

9
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
3

2
5

3
8

3
1

,1
9

8
7

7
2

6
2

,0
0

9
2

,1
8

9
2

,0
0

9
-8

.2
2

%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,5
0

4
1

,8
0

1
2

,3
7

5
6

,6
8

0
6

,1
6

4
6

,6
8

0
8

.3
7

%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
5

.0
0

4
4

8
.0

0
4

5
3

.0
0

4
7

8
.0

0
4

5
3

.0
0

-5
.2

3
%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

0
7

6
1

3
1

5
1

3
-1

3
.3

3
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
0

4
8

8
3

0
2

7
9

0
1

,0
2

2
7

9
0

-2
2

.7
0

%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
2

2
2

2
0

.0
0

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

3
8

1
3

8
9

0
1

3
8

5
3

.3
3

%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

2
7

6
1

5
1

7
1

5
-1

1
.7

6
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1

3
8

4
8

8
3

0
2

9
2

8
1

,1
1

2
9

2
8

-1
6

.5
5

%

C
iv

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

se
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
8

0
9

2
8

0
-1

3
.0

4
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
2

3
2

1
2

3
9

.5
2

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g 
(c

o
rr

ec
te

d
 1

6
,8

8
7

)
1

5
,4

5
0

1
5

,5
6

8
1

6
,8

8
7

8
.4

7
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
1

1
1

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

4
0

3
2

4
0

2
5

.0
0

%

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
2

,0
9

0
1

,7
9

1
2

,0
9

0
1

6
.6

9
%

Tw
it

te
r 

Fo
llo

w
e

rs
7

7
5

7
2

8
7

7
5

6
.4

6
%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

1
,0

1
6

4
0

5
1

,0
1

6
1

5
0

.8
6

%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
1

2
,9

4
4

1
1

,0
1

3
1

2
,9

4
4

1
7

.5
3

%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
7

7
6

N
/A

 *
7

7
6

--

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
e 

fo
r 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
.

58 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

gr
am

 a
n

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
- 

A
u

gu
st

 2
0

1
9

Li
b

W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

TS
/C

ir
c

Li
te

ra
cy

TO
TA

L
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

8
/1

9
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

9
/2

0
 %

 C
h

an
ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

4
3

9
6

6
3

1
3

2
2

5
9

2
8

7
1

0
.8

1
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
0

8
7

4
1

7
4

3
5

1
,0

5
8

2
,3

8
7

2
,4

6
4

3
.2

3
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

4
0

3
7

1
6

1
5

-6
.2

5
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
9

0
4

2
3

4
9

6
4

3
0

.6
1

%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
2

0
2

9
7

-2
2

.2
2

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

5
3

0
5

3
3

8
5

2
9

0
-2

4
.6

8
%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
0

0
2

2
0

.0
0

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
0

4
6

0
3

2
5

-2
9

.3
5

%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

0
3

0
3

9
6

6
6

1
4

1
2

8
6

3
1

1
8

.7
4

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
0

2
8

0
7

4
1

7
4

3
9

1
,1

3
4

3
,2

8
1

3
,1

4
3

-4
.2

1
%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,8
2

8
1

,3
9

9
2

,2
8

6
6

,5
1

3
1

2
,8

2
8

1
3

,1
9

3
2

.8
5

%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
5

.0
0

1
3

.0
0

1
8

.0
0

5
3

8
.0

0
4

7
1

.0
0

-1
2

.4
5

%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

4
5

3
1

2
3

0
2

5
-1

6
.6

7
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
2

2
7

1
5

9
3

2
0

7
0

6
1

,5
7

5
1

,4
9

6
-5

.0
2

%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
2

2
4

4
0

.0
0

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

1
5

1
1

5
1

8
2

2
5

3
3

9
.0

1
%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

6
5

3
1

4
3

4
2

9
-1

4
.7

1
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3

4
2

1
5

9
3

2
0

8
2

1
1

,7
5

7
1

,7
4

9
-0

.4
6

%

C
iv

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

se
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
7

7
1

7
8

1
5

7
-1

1
.8

0
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
2

1
3

8
4

4
1

5
.7

9
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g 
(c

o
rr

ec
te

d
 1

4
,2

4
0

)
1

3
,0

3
2

2
9

,6
3

0
3

1
,1

2
7

5
.0

5
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
1

2
2

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

4
5

9
3

8
5

-8
.6

0
%

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
1

,4
8

6
3

,5
2

5
3

,5
7

6
1

.4
5

%

Tw
it

te
r 

Fo
llo

w
e

rs
7

8
4

7
3

8
7

8
4

6
.2

3
%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

7
9

5
6

9
4

1
,8

1
1

1
6

0
.9

5
%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
5

,6
9

9
1

9
,8

4
4

1
8

,6
4

3
-6

.0
5

%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
5

4
3

N
/A

 *
1

,3
1

9
--

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
e 

fo
r 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
.

59 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

gr
am

 a
n

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
- 

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 2
0

1
9

Li
b

W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

TS
/C

ir
c

Li
te

ra
cy

TO
TA

L
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

8
/1

9
Y

TD
 F

Y
1

9
/2

0
 %

 C
h

an
ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

1
6

3
4

6
2

1
3

2
2

1
0

4
1

9
9

9
.5

2
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
7

6
1

,1
2

4
5

4
2

2
1

,3
7

6
3

,4
8

1
3

,8
4

0
1

0
.3

1
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

4
3

2
9

2
9

2
4

-1
7

.2
4

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
2

1
8

3
4

3
9

0
1

0
7

1
8

.8
9

%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
2

0
2

1
4

9
-3

5
.7

1
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2
0

0
2

0
3

5
8

3
1

0
-1

3
.4

1
%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
0

0
3

2
-3

3
.3

3
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
0

3
6

7
3

2
5

-1
1

.4
4

%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

0
2

7
6

6
4

6
4

1
4

3
2

5
6

4
5

4
7

7
.3

4
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
0

2
1

8
1

,1
4

2
5

4
2

5
1

,4
3

9
4

,2
9

6
4

,5
8

2
6

.6
6

%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,3
3

6
1

,4
9

4
2

,9
9

1
6

,8
2

1
1

9
,4

5
4

2
0

,0
1

4
2

.8
8

%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
5

.0
0

8
.0

0
1

3
.0

0
5

2
6

.0
0

4
8

4
.0

0
-7

.9
8

%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

5
1

7
5

2
7

2
8

5
2

8
5

.7
1

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
2

6
7

1
,0

8
8

3
7

0
1

,7
2

5
1

,2
3

8
3

,2
2

1
1

6
0

.1
8

%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
2

2
6

6
0

.0
0

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

2
0

1
2

0
2

2
0

3
7

3
6

9
.5

5
%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

7
1

7
5

2
9

3
4

5
8

7
0

.5
9

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3

8
7

1
,0

8
8

3
7

0
1

,8
4

5
1

,4
5

8
3

,5
9

4
1

4
6

.5
0

%

C
iv

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

se
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
8

3
2

8
4

2
4

0
-1

5
.4

9
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
2

6
6

6
7

0
6

.0
6

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g 
(c

o
rr

ec
te

d
 1

3
,6

1
2

)
1

2
,1

6
2

4
6

,2
3

2
4

4
,7

3
9

-3
.2

3
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
1

3
3

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

4
3

1
1

0
1

2
8

1
6

.3
6

%

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
1

,1
2

6
6

,8
9

9
4

,7
0

2
-3

1
.8

5
%

Tw
it

te
r 

Fo
llo

w
e

rs
7

9
0

6
7

9
7

9
0

1
6

.3
5

%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

7
9

5
1

,0
2

5
2

,6
0

6
1

5
4

.2
4

%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
3

,6
6

3
1

9
,8

9
0

2
2

,3
0

6
1

2
.1

5
%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
4

9
0

N
/A

 *
1

,8
0

9
--

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
e 

fo
r 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

9
.

60 



 

 

 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY 
 
 

I, Emily Swistak, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified Secretary of the 
 
 Board of Trustees of the Lisle Library District of DuPage County, Illinois, and, as such 
 
 I am the custodian and keeper of the records and files of said Library District. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of that certain Levy 
 
 Ordinance levying and assessing taxes for said Lisle Library District for the fiscal year 
 
 beginning July 1, 2019, which was adopted by said Board of Trustees at a meeting of 
 
 said Board of Trustees held on November 13, 2019. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached Ordinance has not been amended, altered, 
 
 changed or repealed and is still in full force and effect. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature and the 
 
 corporate seal of said Lisle Library District, DuPage County, Illinois, at Lisle, Illinois this 
 
 13th day of November, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________ 

Emily Swistak 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 

61 



1 

 

 

ORDINANCE 19-04 
TAX LEVY ORDINANCE 

 
AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2019, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2020, FOR THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT, OF DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.1  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1: Ordinance 19-03 (Budget and Appropriation Ordinance) is incorporated by 
reference. 

 
Section 2: A tax for the following sums of money, or as much as thereof as may be authorized 
by law, to defray all expenses and liabilities of the Lisle Library District be and the same is 
hereby levied for the purposes specified against all taxable property in the Lisle Library District 
for the fiscal year commencing on the 1st day of July, 2019, and ending on the 30th day of 
June, 2020. 

 
  

 

 
1. CORPORATE FUND 

 

AMOUNT  

APPROPRIATED 

 

AMOUNT 

LEVIED 

EXPENDITURES    

A. EMPLOYEE COSTS   

 Salaries $2,263,000.00  $2,000,000.00 

 Health Insurance $340,000.00  $300,000.00 

 Compysch Asst Plan $400.00  $400.00 

 Unemployment Compensation $4,000.00  $4,000.00 

 Tuition Reimbursement $2,000.00  $0.00 

  $2,609,400.00  $2,304,400.00 

    

B. BUILDING COSTS   

 Internet Service Provider $5,400.00  $5,400.00 

 Inet $1,810.00  $1,810.00 

 Utilities $75,495.00  $70,000.00 

 Maintenance Contracts $99,000.00  $82,500.00 

 Maintenance/Repairs $111,240.00  $93,000.00 

 Rubbish Removal $2,800.00  $2,800.00 

  $295,745.00  $255,510.00 

                                                           
1 Note to taxpayers:   

 This Tax Levy Ordinance relates to Library District taxes to be reflected on DuPage County real estate tax bills to be 
sent in May, 2020. 

 The real estate tax revenue generated by this Tax Levy Ordinance will be received by the Library District in 2020.   

 Reference in this Tax Levy Ordinance to the Library District’s 2019-2020 fiscal year simply complies with state laws 
applicable to Library Districts. 

62 



2 

 

 

 
 

 
CORPORATE FUND (cont.) 

AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

C. OPERATING EXPENSES   

 Postage $14,300.00  $14,300.00 

 Printing/Spec Services $19,000.00  $19,000.00 

 Office Supplies $30,000.00  $25,000.00 

 Circ Material Supplies $11,000.00  $11,000.00 

 Processing Supplies $29,400.00  $28,000.00 

 Publishing $2,310.00  $2,310.00 

 Safety Deposit Box Rental $150.00  $150.00 

 Check Printing/Bank charges $3,550.00  $3,550.00 

 Local Travel $650.00  $650.00 

  $110,360.00  $103,960.00 

    

D. INSURANCE   

 Fidelity Bond $2,100.00  $2,100.00 

 Property and Liability Coverage $25,000.00  $25,000.00 

 Notary Bond $70.00  $70.00 

 Workers Comp Insurance $6,700.00  $6,700.00 

  $33,870.00  $33,870.00 

    

E. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES   

 Legal Services $20,000.00  $15,000.00 

 Collection Agency $700.00  $700.00 

 Other Contractual Services $128,550.00  $128,550.00 

 Investment Agency Consultants $7,350.00  $7,350.00 

 Audit Fee $8,650.00  $8,650.00 

 Payroll Service $7,700.00  $7,700.00 

 Accounting Maintenance/Upgrades $11,000.00  $11,000.00 

  $183,950.00  $178,950.00 

    

F. PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT   

 Dues/Meetings/Conferences, Staff $22,100.00  $15,000.00 

 Memorial/Tribute/Recognition $2,000.00  $0.00 

 In-Service $3,000.00  $3,000.00 

 Training/Continuing-Ed, Staff $2,000.00  $1,500.00 

 Dues/Meetings/Conferences/Training, Trustees $3,600.00  $3,600.00 

  $32,700.00  $23,100.00 

    

G. EQUIPMENT   

 Polaris $57,750.00  $54,000.00 

 Major Equipment $91,000.00  $76,000.00 

 Minor Equipment $4,000.00  $3,500.00 

 Rental-Postage Meter $750.00  $750.00 

 Equipment Maintenance/Repair $21,000.00  $20,000.00 

  $174,500.00  $154,250.00 

63 



3 

 

 

 
CORPORATE FUND (cont.) 

AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

H. LIBRARY MATERIALS   

 Literacy $10,000.00  $9,000.00 

 Books $244,335.00  $225,000.00 

 Databases $160,350.00  $149,200.00 

 AV $150,000.00  $120,000.00 

 Periodicals $48,825.00  $48,825.00 

 Document Delivery $23,000.00  $23,000.00 

  $636,510.00  $575,025.00 

    

I. PROGRAMS   

 Programs/Community Engagement $40,000.00  $37,000.00 

 Readers Services $8,250.00  $7,500.00 
  $48,250.00  $44,500.00 

    

J. RESTRICTED EXPENSES   

 Gifts (if gifts are received) $20,000.00  $0.00 

 Per Capita Grant (per State standards if received) $35,700.00  $0.00 

 Transfer to Special Reserve Fund2 $900,000.00  $0.00 

 Transfer to IMRF (supplemental funding) $50,000.00  $0.00 
  $1,005,700.00  $0.00 

    

K. CONTINGENCY $25,000.00  $0.00 

    

Corporate Fund appropriation subtotal 

Levied for the foregoing  expenses from the General Public Library Tax 
$5,155,985.00  

 $3,673,565.00 

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $1,482,420.00  

    

2. .02 EQUIPMENT, MAINTENANCE, & REPAIRS FUND 

Special Tax of .02% for the cost of equipment, maintenance, repairs, and 

alterations of library buildings and equipment.   

$15,000.00  

 $0.00 

  

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $15,000.00  

    

3.  IMRF (Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund) 

Levied for the foregoing expense of Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

from a Special Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District 

  

$176,000.00  

 $115,000.00 

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $61,000.00  
 

                                                           
2 The LLD Board of Trustees intends to transfer $900,000 to the Special Reserve with said amount to come from reserves in the 
Corporate Fund as supplemented by the transfer of funds from a dissolved Working Cash Fund. 

64 



4 

 

 

 
 

Section 3:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage.   
 
ADOPTED and approved November 13, 2019, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 
 
AYES: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Thomas Hummel 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District  

Passed and filed in my office November 13, 2019. 
 
_____________________________ 
Emily Swistak 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District      
       

 AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

  

4. FICA FUND  (Federal Insurance Contributions Act) 
Levied for the foregoing expense of Social Security from Special 

Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District 

$173,048.35    

 $158,000.00   

    

      

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $15,048.35    

      

5.  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND $822,000.00    

   $0.00   

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $822,000.00    

      

      

SUMMARY:      

      

Total Appropriation $6,342,033.35    

      

Appropriated from other sources  $2,395,468.35    

      

Levied as the General Public Library Tax  $3,673,565.00   

      

Levied as Special Fund Taxes  $273,000.00   

      

TOTAL LEVY  $3,946,565.00   

65 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

THE TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW 

 
 

I, Thomas Hummel, certify that I am the duly presiding officer of the Lisle Library District, DuPage 

County, Illinois, and I certify that the attached ORDINANCE 19-04 (tax levy) was adopted in compliance 

with the Truth in Taxation Law, 35 ILCS 200/18-55 et seq., i.e.: 

__X__ The Library District levied an amount less than 105% of the final aggregate   
  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year. 

 
_____ The Library District levied an amount greater than 105% of the final aggregate   

  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year and   
  a public hearing was held following publication of notice of the public hearing. 
 

This Certificate applies to the 2019 levy. 

 
_________________________________  

       Thomas Hummel 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 
 
Date signed: November 13, 2019 

 

66 



 

 

POLICY 635 
POSTING AND DISTRIBUTION OF MATERIALS 

SIGNS AND DISPLAYING PROMOTIONAL LITERATURE/MATERIALS 

 

The solicitation of funds within the Library or the selling of objects will not be permitted except 
among members of the same group within the Meeting Room during the course of said group’s 
meeting.  Duly authorized activities of the Friends of the Library or the Library itself shall be 
exempt from this restriction. 
 
The LLD commits to promoting its programs, services, and resources using various marketing 
methods such as signs, flyers, brochures, and via digital display.  LLD-sponsored displays and 
materials may be promoted anywhere on LLD property. Authorized LLD staff shall be 
responsible for the distribution of such promotions.  
 
A. LLD Community Boards 

 

The LLD recognizes the public benefit of displaying community-related promotional materials 
in and around its facility.  LLD community Bulletin boards feature are provided in the Library 
for the posting only of announcements, of a general nature that describe an events, or activity 
activities of public interest. to a substantial number of persons in the community.  No 
announcements of a strictly personal nature will be posted.  Content shall be educational, 
cultural, not-for-profit, philanthropic, or civic in nature.  Only authorized LLD staff shall 
approve of and post/display such promotions. LLD staff have full discretion regarding 
consideration for display and/or for removal. 
 
Outside individuals/groups who reserve meeting room space for programs may not advertise 
the program via LLD community boards or display such promotions on LLD property. The LLD 
online calendar advertises all meetings/programs that occur in LLD meeting rooms.   
 
Flyers, brochures, pamphlets, etc. accepted for placing on Library counters must meet the same 
criteria set forth above.  In no case will Library employees participate in the distribution of any 
but Library-generated publications. 

Adopted 7/9/90 
          Revised 11/13/02 

POLICY 640 
SIGNS 

Signs of an educational, recreational, cultural, or civic informational nature may be placed in 
the Library with the permission of the Director or Director’s designee.  The authorizing person 
will date and initial any material for display. 
 
In placing signs, Library materials will always take priority. 
No sign or materials expressing political or religious bias will be displayed. 
Signs to be displayed will have to conform to neatness, size, and space availability as 
determined by the Director. 
 
Library sponsored events may be advertised anywhere in the Library including all bulletin 
boards, display cases, easels, counter tops, and windows. 

67 



 

 

 
All other events or information may be displayed only on the public information bulletin boards 
(maximum sign 18" by 22").  Special permission may be granted by the Director for free-
standing units to be placed on the floor or counters as space allows. 
 
Only Legal Notices (e.g., building permits, legal notices, polling place signs, etc.) may be placed 
on windows. 
 
All signs not picked up within two days after the termination date of the event will be disposed 
of by the Library. 
Hand-outs and brochures will be displayed as space allows.  Brochures may be displayed two 
weeks prior to the event, as space allows.  Library materials will take priority in placement.  All 
other community information brochures will be displayed on the public information rack. 
 
B. Intergovernmental and LLD-Affiliate Signs 
 
The LLD has strong relationships with other governmental agencies within the community, as 
well as historic connections with independent with affiliated organizations such as the Lisle 
Woman’s Club and Friends of the Lisle Public Library District.  The LLD permits the display of 
signs from such organizations on LLD property with limitations.  Signs must be: 

1. Authorized by the LLD Director or designee 
2. Displayed under the guidance of the LLD Director/designee 
3. Modest in size and quantity 
4. In good condition 
5. Collected in a timely manner 

Any signs not collected within a reasonable amount of time shall be removed and/or 
disposed of by the LLD.  
 
C. Special Exhibits 
 
The LLD may partner with an outside agency or group where a free-standing display/exhibit 
may be permitted on LLD property.  Such exhibits shall be authorized and coordinated by the 
LLD Director and/or designee.   
 
           Adopted 7/9/90 

          Revised 11/13/02 
Revised 11/13/19 

68 



 

 

POLICY 635 
SIGNS AND DISPLAYING PROMOTIONAL LITERATURE/MATERIALS 

 

 
The LLD commits to promoting its programs, services, and resources using various marketing 
methods such as signs, flyers, brochures, and via digital display.  LLD-sponsored displays and 
materials may be promoted anywhere on LLD property. Authorized LLD staff shall be 
responsible for the distribution of such promotions.  
 
A. LLD Community Boards 

 

The LLD recognizes the public benefit of displaying community-related promotional materials in 
and around its facility.  LLD community boards feature announcements, events, or activities of 
public interest. Content shall be educational, cultural, not-for-profit, philanthropic, or civic in 
nature.  Only authorized LLD staff shall approve of and post/display such promotions. LLD staff 
have full discretion regarding consideration for display and/or for removal. 
 
Outside individuals/groups who reserve meeting room space for programs may not advertise 
the program via LLD community boards or display such promotions on LLD property. The LLD 
online calendar advertises all meetings/programs that occur in LLD meeting rooms.   
 

B. Intergovernmental and LLD-Affiliate Signs 
 
The LLD has strong relationships with other governmental agencies within the community, as 
well as with affiliated organizations such as the Lisle Woman’s Club and Friends of the Lisle 
Public Library District.  The LLD permits the display of signs from such organizations on LLD 
property with limitations.  Signs must be: 

1. Authorized by the LLD Director or designee 
2. Displayed under the guidance of the LLD Director/designee 
3. Modest in size and quantity 
4. In good condition 
5. Collected in a timely manner 

Any signs not collected within a reasonable amount of time shall be removed and/or disposed 
of by the LLD.  
 
C. Special Exhibits 
 
The LLD may partner with an outside agency or group where a free-standing display/exhibit 
may be permitted on LLD property.  Such exhibits shall be authorized and coordinated by the 
LLD Director and/or designee.   
 
           Adopted 7/9/90 

          Revised 11/13/02 
Revised 11/13/19 

69 



 

 

POLICY 610 
PATRON CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The Lisle Library District (LLD) is committed to providing quality materials, resources, programs 
and services to the community in a safe and secure environment. To achieve this, patrons must 
act in a partnership to ensure that everybody can experience a safe, clean, pleasant and 
productive environment for study, research, information, and enrichment. 
 
Regulations: 

1. Any act or conduct in violation of federal, state, or local laws, ordinances, or Library 

regulations is prohibited on LLD property. 

2. Behavior which may disturb others or interfere with their rights to use the Library is 

prohibited.   Examples include, but are not limited to: hitting, shoving, harassment, 

indecent exposure, loud voices, smoking, pervasive odor, loitering, profanity, prolonged 

staring, intimidation, and/or threats. 

3. The use and/or possession of weapons or any other objects that can reasonably be 

considered as weapons is prohibited. 

4. Food may not be consumed in the Library with the exception of designated areas, at 

Library-sanctioned events, or in meetings where prior permission has been obtained 

granted. All B beverages must be in closed containers have a lid. 

5. Possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages while on LLD property is prohibited, 

as is entering the Library in a state of intoxication. Consumption of cannabis products 

while on LLD property is prohibited. as is entering the Library while under the 

apparent influence of such products.  Any inebriated behavior, whether via legal, 

prescriptive, or illegal means, may prompt a call to the appropriate local 

authority/agency.   

6. Personal property may not be left unattended. The Library/staff is not responsible for 

personal property. Staff may call local authorities to remove unattended property from 

the facility/campus. 

7. Patrons are required to comply with the reasonable request/s of a Library staff member. 

8. Proper attire and hygiene which conforms to the standards of the community for public 

places is required, including shirts and shoes. A general standard of hygiene is expected. 

9. Wheeled sporting equipment such as bicycles and scooters may not be used or stored in 

the Library, nor obstruct external doors. 

70 



 

 

10. Theft, tampering, defacement, or destruction of Library materials, equipment, or 

furnishings is prohibited. Graffiti/tagging is prohibited, as is posting unauthorized 

flyers, signs, stickers, or other like materials in or around the LLD facility.  Vandalism, 

anywhere on LLD property, is prohibited and proper authorities shall be notified. 

11. Patrons are not allowed to use the Library for typical household activities such as 

sleeping, bathing, shaving, or storage of personal items. 

12. Animals may not be left unattended on LLD property. The LLD complies with the Service 

Animal Access Act (SAAC, 720 ILCS 5/48-8). Service animals are allowed and must be 

under the control of a handler. If a service animal behaves unacceptably, staff may ask 

the patron and animal to leave the premises. Uncontrolled barking, jumping on other 

people, or running away from the handler are examples of unacceptable service animal 

behavior. 

13. Selling, soliciting, or requesting donations/money is not allowed on LLD property with 

the exception of Library-sanctioned activities. 

14. No circulation of petitions, surveys, distribution/posting of literature, or campaigning is 

allowed inside the building with the exception of Library-sanctioned activities.  Outside 

the building, such activities may not be conducted within 15 feet of the entrance of the 

building.  These activities may not disrupt LLD operations, impede people from entering 

or leaving, or create unsafe traffic patterns on the sidewalks or in parking lots.  Persons 

circulating petitions, surveys, or literature may not place tables, chairs, tents, or signs 

on LLD property. Patrons may not be harassed, threatened, or coercively detained by 

persons distributing literature or seeking to solicit signatures. 

15. Materials viewed on electronic/digital devices while in the Library should be appropriate 

for a public environment. Patrons must also abide by the LLD Internet Access and Public 

Computer Use Policy 340. 

16. Commercial, or promotional photography or video/audio Commercial/profit-making 

photography, video, or audio recording while on LLD property is prohibited without 

prior permission from the Library Director. 

17. Library staff members are not responsible for the supervision of children except when 

they are participating in a designated Library event. A caregiver must remain in the 

Library if a child is below the age of eight.  Children must be eight years and above and 

mature enough to be unsupervised to use the Library independently. Younger children 

should remain in the line of sight of their caregiver. A caregiver must be at least 14 years 

of age. 

71 



 

 

18. The LLD does not serve in lieu of parents/guardians, and parents/guardians are 

responsible for a minor’s behavior whether or not parents/guardians are present. 

19. Cell phones and other electronic/digital devices should be set to silent or vibrate while 

in the Library; conversations or disruptive digital noises should not disturb other 

patrons. Phone conversation is not allowed while using the public computers. 

20. Patrons must leave the LLD property at closing time or as directed by Library staff. 

21. Bags may be inspected with probable cause. 

The Illinois Local Library Act authorizes the Board of Trustees and designees to “…exclude from 
the use of the Library any person who willfully violates an ordinance or regulation prescribed by 
the Board.” 
Failure to follow the LLD Patron Code of Conduct may result in documentation of the incident, a 
warning/s concerning the behavior, immediate expulsion from the Library or banning for a 
designated length of time dependent upon the severity of the offense.     
The Lisle Police or other authorities may be called to assist staff when it is deemed necessary. 
The Library Director or designee may issue a written response to a violation of the LLD Patron 
Code of Conduct. 
 

         Approved 7/11/12 
Revised 6/13/18 

Revised 11/13/19 

 
 

 

72 



 

 

POLICY 610 
PATRON CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The Lisle Library District (LLD) is committed to providing quality materials, resources, programs 
and services to the community in a safe and secure environment. To achieve this, patrons must 
act in a partnership to ensure that everybody can experience a safe, clean, pleasant and 
productive environment for study, research, information, and enrichment. 
 
Regulations: 

1. Any act or conduct in violation of federal, state, or local laws, ordinances, or Library 

regulations is prohibited on LLD property. 

2. Behavior which may disturb others or interfere with their rights to use the Library is 

prohibited.   Examples include, but are not limited to: hitting, shoving, harassment, 

indecent exposure, loud voices, smoking, pervasive odor, loitering, profanity, prolonged 

staring, intimidation, and/or threats. 

3. The use and/or possession of weapons or any other objects that can reasonably be 

considered as weapons is prohibited. 

4. Food may not be consumed in the Library with the exception of designated areas, at 

Library-sanctioned events, or in meetings where prior permission has been granted. All 

beverages must have a lid. 

5. Possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages while on LLD property is prohibited, 

as is entering the Library in a state of intoxication. Consumption of cannabis products 

while on LLD property is prohibited. Any inebriated behavior, whether via legal, 

prescriptive, or illegal means, may prompt a call to the appropriate local 

authority/agency.   

6. Personal property may not be left unattended. The Library/staff is not responsible for 

personal property. Staff may call local authorities to remove unattended property from 

the facility/campus. 

7. Patrons are required to comply with the reasonable request/s of a Library staff member. 

8. Proper attire and hygiene which conforms to the standards of the community for public 

places is required, including shirts and shoes. A general standard of hygiene is expected. 

9. Wheeled sporting equipment such as bicycles and scooters may not be used or stored in 

the Library, nor obstruct external doors. 

73 



 

 

10. Theft, tampering, defacement, or destruction of Library materials, equipment, or 

furnishings is prohibited. Graffiti/tagging is prohibited, as is posting unauthorized flyers, 

signs, stickers, or other like materials in or around the LLD facility.  Vandalism, anywhere 

on LLD property, is prohibited and proper authorities shall be notified. 

11. Patrons are not allowed to use the Library for typical household activities such as 

sleeping, bathing, shaving, or storage of personal items. 

12. Animals may not be left unattended on LLD property. The LLD complies with the Service 

Animal Access Act (SAAC, 720 ILCS 5/48-8). Service animals must be under the control of 

a handler. If a service animal behaves unacceptably, staff may ask the patron and animal 

to leave the premises. Uncontrolled barking, jumping on other people, or running away 

from the handler are examples of unacceptable service animal behavior. 

13. Selling, soliciting, or requesting donations/money is not allowed on LLD property with 

the exception of Library-sanctioned activities. 

14. No circulation of petitions, surveys, distribution/posting of literature, or campaigning is 

allowed inside the building with the exception of Library-sanctioned activities.  Outside 

the building, such activities may not be conducted within 15 feet of the entrance of the 

building.  These activities may not disrupt LLD operations, impede people from entering 

or leaving, or create unsafe traffic patterns on the sidewalks or in parking lots.  Persons 

circulating petitions, surveys, or literature may not place tables, chairs, tents, or signs on 

LLD property. Patrons may not be harassed, threatened, or coercively detained by 

persons distributing literature or seeking signatures. 

15. Materials viewed on electronic/digital devices while in the Library should be appropriate 

for a public environment. Patrons must also abide by the LLD Internet Access and Public 

Computer Use Policy 340. 

16. Commercial/profit-making photography, video, or audio recording while on LLD 

property is prohibited without prior permission from the Library Director. 

17. Library staff members are not responsible for the supervision of children except when 

they are participating in a designated Library event. A caregiver must remain in the 

Library if a child is below the age of eight.  Children must be eight years and above and 

mature enough to be unsupervised to use the Library independently. Younger children 

should remain in the line of sight of their caregiver. A caregiver must be at least 14 years 

of age. 

74 



 

 

18. The LLD does not serve in lieu of parents/guardians, and parents/guardians are 

responsible for a minor’s behavior whether or not parents/guardians are present. 

19. Cell phones and other electronic/digital devices should be set to silent or vibrate while 

in the Library; conversations or disruptive digital noises should not disturb other 

patrons. Phone conversation is not allowed while using the public computers. 

20. Patrons must leave the LLD property at closing time or as directed by Library staff. 

21. Bags may be inspected with probable cause. 

The Illinois Local Library Act authorizes the Board of Trustees and designees to “…exclude from 
the use of the Library any person who willfully violates an ordinance or regulation prescribed by 
the Board.” 
Failure to follow the LLD Patron Code of Conduct may result in documentation of the incident, a 
warning/s concerning the behavior, immediate expulsion from the Library or banning for a 
designated length of time dependent upon the severity of the offense.     
The Lisle Police or other authorities may be called to assist staff when it is deemed necessary. 
The Library Director or designee may issue a written response to a violation of the LLD Patron 
Code of Conduct. 
 

         Approved 7/11/12 
Revised 6/13/18 

Revised 11/13/19 

 
 

 

75 



 

 

 
 

POLICY 201 
LLD BOARD OF TRUSTEES CODE OF CONDUCT & ETHICS 

 
 
Clear standards of conduct and ethics guidelines are essential in ensuring public confidence in its 
government. It is the aim of this Policy to establish that Lisle Library District (LLD) Trustees conduct 
themselves with integrity and adhere to the highest ethical standards.  The LLD Board of Trustees 
shall act in accordance with all local, state, and federal statutes as well as with all LLD policies, 
procedures, resolutions, and ordinances.   
 
LLD Trustees have the fiduciary responsibility for all resources of the Library.  These resources  
include staff, finances, facility/campus, materials, communications, and services.  Each Trustee 
makes the commitment to carry out his/her responsibilities effectively and with honor. 
 
 
A. Legislation/Compliance 
 

1. Illinois Governmental Ethics Act (5 ILCS 420) 
Trustees shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest. 

2. Illinois State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430) 
All units of local government are required to adopt regulations in compliance with the 
requirements of the Act. 

3. Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120) 
Trustees shall comply with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act in order to discuss and 
conduct District business. 

4. Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140) 
Trustees shall comply with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act when pertinent 
to the LLD. 

 
B. Authority  
 

1. LLD Board discussion and decisions shall be made at publicly held Board meetings. 
a. Decisions are made by a majority of the Board. 
b. Trustees shall abide by majority decisions of the Board while retaining the right to 

seek change through ethical and constructive channels. 
c. An individual Board member has no authority to determine policy, give direction, or 

to act/speak for the Board unless specifically authorized to do so by official Board 
action. 

d. The LLD Board establishes policy, the LLD Director administers policy.  
 

2. Branding/LLD Logo 
a. The official logo of the LLD is proprietary to the LLD and shall be limited to Board-

authorized uses. 
b. Trustees shall not utilize the LLD logo for personal, political, or financial gain. 

 
 

76 



 

 

C. Administrative Office 
 
1. LLD Trustees are afforded a specific code to access the LLD Administrative Office. Trustees 

shall not share their code with any other person. 
2. Only LLD Trustees are allowed access to the Administrative Office. Trustees shall not bring 

adult guest/s within the Office. 
3. Trustees shall not disturb staff desks or files within the Administrative Office. 
4. Trustees shall not proceed beyond the Administrative Office to employee-only areas such as 

the staff break room, Department/Director offices, storage room, mechanical rooms, or 
receiving area.  Should a Trustee wish to review such areas, the Trustee shall contact the 
Director for a scheduled tour. 

5. Trustee duties, such as reviewing accounts payable, shall be conducted within the 
Administrative Office. Should the office space be fully occupied, Trustees may review 
documents at a public table or within a study room on the Adult Services floor. At no time 
should Administrative Office documents/records leave the facility. 

6. Office mailboxes are afforded provided to all Trustees.  Mailboxes are located within the 
Administrative Office.  Trustees shall not review, search, or open another Trustee’s mail. 
Mail within the respective Trustee’s mailbox may leave the facility. 

 
D. Representation 
 

1. Trustees are elected at-large in non-partisan elections and represent all residents of the 
District. 

2. Trustees shall avoid any conflict of interest or the appearance of impropriety in service to 
the District. 

3. Outside of a Board meeting, when stating an opinion about LLD matters, Trustees shall 
disclose that their views/opinions are expressly their own and not of the Board. 

4. Trustees shall not intentionally or negligently post/state incorrect or incomplete 
information about the LLD.  Trustees shall make every effort to correct misinformation if at 
all possible. 

5. Trustees shall not use their Board position for personal gain and shall refuse to surrender 
their responsibilities to special interests or partisan groups. 

6. Trustees shall not promise anything of value in relation to the LLD, including but not limited 
to positions/opportunities, favorable treatment, awarding of public contracts, or 
contributions/financial support to any group or candidate/s for elective office. 

7. Trustees shall not solicit, accept, offer, or make campaign contributions on LLD property.  
8. Trustees shall not accept campaign contributions from LLD vendors. 
9. Trustees shall not use their Board position to intimidate LLD employees to conduct any 

activities for his/her own personal gain, or for the gain of others. misappropriate the 
services of any on-duty LLD employee by Trustees shall not requiring or implying they 
require or imply that employees take part in conduct prohibited political activityies as part 
of their duties or as a condition of employment. Examples of prohibited political activity 
include: 

a. Preparing for, organizing, or participating in a campaign meeting/event. 
b. Preparing documents or promotional materials related to a campaign.  
c. Distributing, preparing for distribution, or mailing campaign material. 

10. Trustees shall not conduct any prohibited political/campaign activity using LLD District 
funds, non-public equipment, or supplies. 

77 



 

 

 
 
 
E. Decorum 

 
1. Trustees shall not engage in discrimination of any kind and shall uphold patrons’ rights to 

privacy/confidentiality. 
2. Trustees shall not disclose confidential, exclusive, or closed session information unless 

specifically authorized by Board action. 
3. Trustees shall encourage the free expression of opinion by fellow Board members and shall 

contribute to Board discussions in an open, honest, and respectful manner. 
4. Trustees shall not monopolize discussions, interrupt others, or conduct side conversations 

during Board meetings. 
5. Preparing for, attending, and actively participating in Board meetings is expected of all 

Trustees. 
6. Whether in-person, on paper, or via digital communications, Trustees are expected to 

exhibit professional behavior and respectful communications when referring or responding 
to LLD matters, personnel, or other Trustees. 

7. It is the expectation that Trustees advocate for and promote the LLD’s services, programs, 
and resources. 

8. Trustees shall not obstruct, encumber, or interfere with the official operations of other 
independent community organizations.  

9. To ensure clear decision-making and responsible conduct, Trustees shall not participate in 
LLD activities/meetings while intoxicated/inebriated in a state of intoxication.  

 
 
F. Director  

 
1. Trustees shall respect the delegated authority of the LLD Director and honor the chain of 

command. Trustees work directly with the LLD Director and shall not give direction to other 
LLD staff. 

2. Requests for information concerning District operations shall be made to the Director. 
Trustees shall recognize that the Director will balance all Trustee requests with his/her 
regular daily duties in expediting Trustee information. 

3. Board suggestions for new policies or policy edits shall be referred to the respective 
Committee Chair and Director for research, evaluation, and draft work. 

4. In efforts to conduct productive Board meetings, Trustees shall submit questions in advance 
so that the Director can research answers in a timely fashion. 

5. Should a Trustee wish to meet with the Director for a comprehensive discussion, the 
Trustee shall request a scheduled meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

78 



 

 

G. Breaches 
 
Board members are expected to act responsibly and hold themselves to the highest ethical 
standards. Breaches of the LLD Trustee Code of Conduct may result in a public correction, 
official rebuke, or censure.  When breaches do occur, the Board President1 shall rebuke 
address inappropriate behavior in an open meeting so to ensure that the public does not 
mistake the action as endorsed by the Board.  
 

1. Public Correction/Rebuke 
 
A public correction is an official Board statement to address misinformation, enhance 
understanding, and/or rectify a situation.  A Board rebuke is an official admonishment 
which may lead to censure.   

 
a. Upon any public rebuke breach, as soon as possible, the Board President shall speak 

with the member who provoked the a public correction/rebuke in order to dissuade 
any further breaches, to encourage a public apology, and to apprise the member of 
possible censure. 

b. Should a breach occur without acknowledgment from the Board President, 
another member may raise a point of order within a public meeting and/or inform 
the President of the breach via email to prompt a public correction/rebuke.  

c. Should the Board President disagree with announcing a public correction/rebuke, 
a majority of a quorum may request an item to be placed on the next regular 
meeting agenda so to publicly admonish for discussion, and possible 
correction/rebuke. the breach.    

 
2. Censure 
 

Any violation of the LLD Trustee Code of Conduct, dereliction of duty, conflict of 
interest, or inappropriate behavior may result in a Resolution of Censure as drafted and 
adopted by the Board. A Resolution of Censure is an official condemnation and 
reprimand of a Trustee by the Board and: 
a. A censure is official condemnation and reprimand by the Board. 
b. Resolutions of Censure Must be approved by a majority of Board members in an 

open meeting. 
c. Censures are Is enacted with the hope to deter and reform unethical behavior.  
d. A censure Does not remove a member from the Board nor does it hinder the ability 

to attend meetings, make motions, or vote. 
Censures may occur via: 
e. A verbal rebuke by any member regarding improper Board behavior. 
f. Repeated breaches of proper conduct.  
g. Flagrant unethical behavior.   
Procedure for a Resolution of Censure: 
h. A member may call for a formal censure in open meeting or via email to the Board 

President, copying the Director.  

                                                           
1 Should the Board President be the subject of the correction, rebuke, or censure, the Board shall adhere to the 
chain of command as follows: Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer.   

79 



 

 

i. A majority of a quorum is required to draft a Resolution of Censure.   
j. Trustees shall individually email the President and Director with the censure request 

and list the charge/s.  
k. Upon receipt of three Trustee requests to draft a Resolution of Censure, the 

Director shall inform the entire Board of such a request the censure request and 
list of charges via email, by the end of the next business day.  

l. The Director shall consult with the Board President in drafting the Resolution. 
m. The drafted Resolution of Censure shall be on the agenda of the next regularly 

scheduled Board meeting. In special cases, the censure may compel an Executive 
Session hearing or the President may call a Special Meeting dependent on the 
severity of breach.  

n. The Resolution of Censure agenda item allows for discussion, amendment, and 
allows the subject to respond to the charge/s before votes are cast.  

 
Persistent and/or flagrant breaches or multiple censures may result in the Board invoking 
legal consultation and seeking a court injunction. 

 
 
 
 

Adopted 11/13/19 

80 



 

 

 
 

POLICY 201 
LLD BOARD OF TRUSTEES CODE OF CONDUCT & ETHICS 

 
 
Clear standards of conduct and ethics guidelines are essential in ensuring public confidence in its 
government. It is the aim of this Policy to establish that Lisle Library District (LLD) Trustees conduct 
themselves with integrity and adhere to the highest ethical standards.  The LLD Board of Trustees 
shall act in accordance with all local, state, and federal statutes as well as with all LLD policies, 
procedures, resolutions, and ordinances.   
 
LLD Trustees have the fiduciary responsibility for all resources of the Library.  These resources  
include staff, finances, facility/campus, materials, communications, and services.  Each Trustee 
makes the commitment to carry out his/her responsibilities effectively and with honor. 
 
 
A. Legislation/Compliance 
 

1. Illinois Governmental Ethics Act (5 ILCS 420) 
Trustees shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest. 

2. Illinois State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430) 
All units of local government are required to adopt regulations in compliance with the 
requirements of the Act. 

3. Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120) 
Trustees shall comply with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act in order to discuss and 
conduct District business. 

4. Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140) 
Trustees shall comply with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act when pertinent 
to the LLD. 

 
B. Authority  
 

1. LLD Board discussion and decisions shall be made at publicly held Board meetings. 
a. Decisions are made by a majority of the Board. 
b. Trustees shall abide by majority decisions of the Board while retaining the right to 

seek change through ethical and constructive channels. 
c. An individual Board member has no authority to determine policy, give direction, or 

to act/speak for the Board unless specifically authorized to do so by official Board 
action. 

d. The LLD Board establishes policy, the LLD Director administers policy.  
 

2. Branding/LLD Logo 
a. The official logo of the LLD is proprietary to the LLD and shall be limited to Board-

authorized uses. 
b. Trustees shall not utilize the LLD logo for personal, political, or financial gain. 

 
 

81 



 

 

C. Administrative Office 
 
1. LLD Trustees are afforded a specific code to access the LLD Administrative Office. Trustees 

shall not share their code with any other person. 
2. Only LLD Trustees are allowed access to the Administrative Office. Trustees shall not bring 

adult guest/s within the Office. 
3. Trustees shall not disturb staff desks or files within the Administrative Office. 
4. Trustees shall not proceed beyond the Administrative Office to employee-only areas such as 

the staff break room, Department/Director offices, storage room, mechanical rooms, or 
receiving area.  Should a Trustee wish to review such areas, the Trustee shall contact the 
Director for a scheduled tour. 

5. Trustee duties, such as reviewing accounts payable, shall be conducted within the 
Administrative Office. Should the office space be fully occupied, Trustees may review 
documents at a public table or within a study room on the Adult Services floor. At no time 
should Administrative Office documents/records leave the facility. 

6. Office mailboxes are provided to all Trustees.  Mailboxes are located within the 
Administrative Office.  Trustees shall not review, search, or open another Trustee’s mail. 
Mail within the respective Trustee’s mailbox may leave the facility. 

 
 

D. Representation 
 

1. Trustees are elected at-large in non-partisan elections and represent all residents of the 
District. 

2. Trustees shall avoid any conflict of interest or the appearance of impropriety in service to 
the District. 

3. Outside of a Board meeting, when stating an opinion about LLD matters, Trustees shall 
disclose that their views/opinions are expressly their own and not of the Board. 

4. Trustees shall not intentionally or negligently post/state incorrect or incomplete 
information about the LLD.  Trustees shall make every effort to correct misinformation if at 
all possible. 

5. Trustees shall not use their Board position for personal gain and shall refuse to surrender 
their responsibilities to special interests or partisan groups. 

6. Trustees shall not promise anything of value in relation to the LLD, including but not limited 
to positions/opportunities, favorable treatment, awarding of public contracts, or 
contributions/financial support to any group or candidate/s for elective office. 

7. Trustees shall not solicit, accept, offer, or make campaign contributions on LLD property.  
8. Trustees shall not accept campaign contributions from LLD vendors. 
9. Trustees shall not use their Board position to intimidate LLD employees to conduct any 

activities for his/her own personal gain, or for the gain of others. Trustees shall not require 
or imply that employees take part in prohibited political activity as part of their duties or as 
a condition of employment. Examples of prohibited political activity include: 

a. Preparing for, organizing, or participating in a campaign meeting/event. 
b. Preparing documents or promotional materials related to a campaign.  
c. Distributing, preparing for distribution, or mailing campaign material. 

10. Trustees shall not conduct any political/campaign activity using LLD funds, non-public 
equipment, or supplies. 

 

82 



 

 

 
 
E. Decorum 

 
1. Trustees shall not engage in discrimination of any kind and shall uphold patrons’ rights to 

privacy/confidentiality. 
2. Trustees shall not disclose confidential, exclusive, or closed session information unless 

specifically authorized by Board action. 
3. Trustees shall encourage the free expression of opinion by fellow Board members and shall 

contribute to Board discussions in an open, honest, and respectful manner. 
4. Trustees shall not monopolize discussions, interrupt others, or conduct side conversations 

during Board meetings. 
5. Preparing for, attending, and actively participating in Board meetings is expected of all 

Trustees. 
6. Whether in-person, on paper, or via digital communications, Trustees are expected to 

exhibit professional behavior and respectful communications when referring or responding 
to LLD matters, personnel, or other Trustees. 

7. It is the expectation that Trustees advocate for and promote the LLD’s services, programs, 
and resources. 

8. Trustees shall not obstruct, encumber, or interfere with the official operations of other 
independent community organizations.  

9. To ensure clear decision-making and responsible conduct, Trustees shall not participate in 
LLD activities/meetings while in a state of intoxication.  

 
 
F. Director  

 
1. Trustees shall respect the delegated authority of the LLD Director and honor the chain of 

command. Trustees work directly with the LLD Director and shall not give direction to other 
LLD staff. 

2. Requests for information concerning District operations shall be made to the Director. 
Trustees shall recognize that the Director will balance all Trustee requests with his/her 
regular daily duties in expediting Trustee information. 

3. Board suggestions for new policies or policy edits shall be referred to the respective 
Committee Chair and Director for research, evaluation, and draft work. 

4. In efforts to conduct productive Board meetings, Trustees shall submit questions in advance 
so that the Director can research answers in a timely fashion. 

5. Should a Trustee wish to meet with the Director for a comprehensive discussion, the 
Trustee shall request a scheduled meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83 



 

 

 
G. Breaches 

 
Board members are expected to act responsibly and hold themselves to the highest ethical 
standards. Breaches of the LLD Trustee Code of Conduct may result in a public correction, 
official rebuke, or censure.  When breaches occur, the Board President1 shall address 
inappropriate behavior in an open meeting so to ensure that the public does not mistake the 
action as endorsed by the Board.  
 

1. Public Correction/Rebuke 
 
A public correction is an official Board statement to address misinformation, enhance 
understanding, and/or rectify a situation.  A Board rebuke is an official admonishment 
which may lead to censure.   

 
a. Upon any breach, as soon as possible, the Board President shall speak with the 

member who provoked a public correction/rebuke in order to dissuade any further 
breaches, to encourage a public apology, and to apprise the member of possible 
censure. 

b. Should a breach occur without acknowledgment from the Board President, another 
member may raise a point of order within a public meeting and/or inform the 
President of the breach via email to prompt a public correction/rebuke.  

c. Should the Board President disagree with announcing a public correction/rebuke, a 
majority of a quorum may request an item to be placed on the next regular meeting 
agenda for discussion, and possible correction/rebuke.  

 
2. Censure 
 

Any violation of the LLD Trustee Code of Conduct, dereliction of duty, conflict of 
interest, or inappropriate behavior may result in a Resolution of Censure as drafted and 
adopted by the Board. A Resolution of Censure is an official condemnation and 
reprimand of a Trustee by the Board and: 
a. Must be approved by a majority of Board members in an open meeting. 
b. Is enacted with the hope to deter and reform unethical behavior.  
c. Does not remove a member from the Board nor does it hinder the ability to attend 

meetings, make motions, or vote. 
 

Procedure for a Resolution of Censure: 
d. A member may call for a formal censure in open meeting or via email to the Board 

President, copying the Director.  
e. A majority of a quorum is required to draft a Resolution of Censure.   
f. Trustees shall individually email the President and Director with the censure request 

and list the charge/s.  

                                                           
1 Should the Board President be the subject of the correction, rebuke, or censure, the Board shall adhere to the 
chain of command as follows: Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer.   

84 



 

 

g. Upon receipt of three Trustee requests to draft a Resolution of Censure, the Director 
shall inform the entire Board of the censure request and list of charges via email, by 
the end of the next business day.  

h. The Director shall consult with the Board President in drafting the Resolution. 
i. The drafted Resolution of Censure shall be on the agenda of the next regularly 

scheduled Board meeting. In special cases, the censure may compel an Executive 
Session hearing or the President may call a Special Meeting dependent on the 
severity of breach.  

j. The Resolution of Censure agenda item allows for discussion, amendment, and 
allows the subject to respond to the charge/s before votes are cast.  

 
Persistent and/or flagrant breaches or multiple censures may result in the Board invoking 
legal consultation and seeking a court injunction. 

 
 
 
 

Adopted 11/13/19 

85 



 

 

MOVED 
UP FROM 
BELOW 

NEW 
LETTER 

 

 

 
 

POLICY 705 
CONSTRUCTION, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS, AND CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

 

A. Formal bids required 

 

All purchases and commitments for construction, capital improvements, and 
contractual services, shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, considering 
conformity with specifications, terms of delivery, quality, and serviceability 
requirements.  

 

The method for the solicitation of bids and procedures is as follows: 

 

1. The Board shall request a “call for bids” in an open meeting. 
2. A call for bids shall be prepared.  The Board may call upon expert advice to 

assist with preparing bidding documents.  
3. The call for bids shall describe in detail the required qualifications for 

bidders, specifications of the goods or services, terms of delivery, draft of the 
contract (if applicable), need for performance bond (if applicable), whether 
samples are required, the form in which to submit the bid, any other 
conditions, and the time and place for opening bids. 

4. Notice of the availability of such call for bids shall be published in at least one 
local newspaper and on the LLD website. The Board may select additional 
newspapers or other publications in which to place such advertisements. In 
accordance with 75 ILCS 16/1-30 (b), all notices shall be given at least 30 days 
before the hearing. A copy of the notice shall be posted at the LLD.  

5. The Director shall present the bids to the LLD Board of Trustees. The Board 
shall make the decision and award the contract in an open meeting.  

 

B. Formal bids not required 
 
Formal bidding is not required in the following cases unless it is otherwise required by 
Section 75 ILCS 16/40-45 (b): 

1. Where the amount involved is under $25,000. 
2. Where the goods or services to be procured are economically procurable 

from only one source, such as contracts for public utility services, books, and 
specially designed business and research equipment and related supplies. 

 

 

86 



 

 

MOVED 
UP FROM 
BELOW 

REQUESTED 
DELINEATION 
EXAMPLE 

 
 

3. Where the services required are for professional, technical, or artistic skills. 
4. Where contracts for the maintenance or servicing of, or provision of repair 

parts for, equipment which are made with the manufacturer or authorized 
service agent of that equipment where the provision of parts, maintenance, 
or servicing can best be performed by the manufacturer or authorized 
service agents. 

5. Purchases and contracts for the use, purchase, delivery, movement, or 
installation of data processing equipment, software, or services and 
telecommunications and interconnect equipment, software, and services. 

6. Contracts for goods or services procured from another governmental agency. 
7. In emergencies when immediate repairs or replacement of equipment 

owned by the Library is necessary in order to permit the Library to properly 
function, or when there has been a local disaster or catastrophe.  

The Board shall consider the following in emergencies: professional 
recommendations, repeated failures, dangers/hazards, timeframe and 
phasing for repair/replacement, and overall facility operations. 

 

All purchases and commitments for construction, capital improvements, and 
contractual services not requiring bids under this policy, shall be made on the basis 
of price, quality, and dependability and using at least three informal competitive 
quotations from qualified suppliers. Three quotations are not required where the 
amount is under $2,000.00. 

 
 The method for the solicitation of bids and procedures is as follows: 
 

8. The Board shall request a “call for bids” in an open meeting. 
9. A call for bids shall be prepared.  The Board may call upon expert advice to 

assist with preparing bidding documents.  
10. The call for bids shall describe in detail the required qualifications for 
 bidders, specifications of the goods or services, terms of delivery, draft  of 
 the contract (if applicable), need for performance bond (if applicable), 
 whether samples are required, the form in which to submit the bid, any 
 other conditions, and the time and place for opening bids. 
11. Notice of the availability of such call for bids shall be published in at least one 

local newspaper and on the LLD website. The Board may select additional 
newspapers or other publications in which to place such advertisements. In 
accordance with 75 ILCS 16/1-30 (b), all notices shall be given at least 30 days 
before the hearing. A copy of the notice shall be posted at the LLD.  

12. The Director shall present the bids to the LLD Board of Trustees. The Board 
shall make the decision and award the contract in an open meeting.  

 

87 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

C. Formal bids not required 

 

All purchases and commitments for construction, capital improvements, and contractual 
services not requiring bids under this policy, shall be made on the basis of price, quality, and 
dependability and using at least three informal competitive quotations from qualified 
suppliers. Three quotations are not required where the amount is under $2,000.00. 

 
 

 Adopted 8/13/90 
 Revised 8/8/01 

 Revised 11/13/02 
 Revised 9/21/05 

Revised 3/13/19 
Revised __/__/19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

88 



 

 

POLICY 705 
CONSTRUCTION, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS, AND CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

 
A. Formal bids required 
 

All purchases and commitments for construction, capital improvements, and contractual 
services, shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, considering conformity with 
specifications, terms of delivery, quality, and serviceability requirements.  
 
The method for the solicitation of bids and procedures is as follows: 

 
1. The Board shall request a “call for bids” in an open meeting. 
2. A call for bids shall be prepared.  The Board may call upon expert advice to assist 

with preparing bidding documents.  
3. The call for bids shall describe in detail the required qualifications for bidders, 

specifications of the goods or services, terms of delivery, draft  of the 
contract (if applicable), need for performance bond (if applicable), whether 
samples are required, the form in which to submit the bid, any other conditions, 
and the time and place for opening bids. 

4. Notice of the availability of such call for bids shall be published in at least one 
local newspaper and on the LLD website. The Board may select additional 
newspapers or other publications in which to place such advertisements. In 
accordance with 75 ILCS 16/1-30 (b), all notices shall be given at least 30 days 
before the hearing. A copy of the notice shall be posted at the LLD.  

5. The Director shall present the bids to the LLD Board of Trustees. The Board shall 
make the decision and award the contract in an open meeting.  

 
B. Formal bids not required 
 

Formal bidding is not required in the following cases unless it is otherwise required by 
Section 75 ILCS 16/40-45 (b): 
 
1. Where the amount involved is under $25,000. 
2. Where the goods or services to be procured are economically procurable from 

only one source, such as contracts for public utility services, books, and specially 
designed business and research equipment and related supplies. 

3. Where the services required are for professional, technical, or artistic skills. 
4. Where contracts for the maintenance or servicing of, or provision of repair parts 

for, equipment which are made with the manufacturer or authorized service 
agent of that equipment where the provision of parts, maintenance, or servicing 
can best be performed by the manufacturer or authorized service agents. 

5. Purchases and contracts for the use, purchase, delivery, movement, or 
installation of data processing equipment, software, or services and 
telecommunications and interconnect equipment, software, and services. 

89 



 

 

6. Contracts for goods or services procured from another governmental agency. 
7. In emergencies when immediate repairs or replacement of equipment owned by 

the Library is necessary in order to permit the Library to properly function, or 
when there has been a local disaster or catastrophe.  
The Board shall consider the following in emergencies: professional 
recommendations, repeated failures, dangers/hazards, timeframe and phasing 
for repair/replacement, and overall facility operations. 

 
All purchases and commitments for construction, capital improvements, and contractual 
services not requiring bids under this policy, shall be made on the basis of price, quality, 
and dependability and using at least three informal competitive quotations from 
qualified suppliers. Three quotations are not required where the amount is under 
$2,000.00. 

 
 
 

Adopted 8/13/90 
Revised 8/8/01 

Revised 11/13/02 
Revised 9/21/05 
Revised 3/13/19 

Revised 11/13/19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90 



91 



92 



 

Illinois Compiled Statutes (75 ILCS 16/40-45) [ilga.gov] 

    Sec. 40-45. Bids for construction, improvements, or equipment purchases. 

    (a) When the trustees determine to commence constructing the building, purchasing a site or a 

building, remodeling, repairing, or improving an existing library building, erecting an addition to an 

existing library building, or purchasing the necessary equipment for the library, they may then revise the 

plan or adopt a new plan and provide estimates of the costs of the revised or new plan. 

    (b) The board shall, when the cost is in excess of $25,000, advertise for bids for constructing the 

building, remodeling, repairing, or improving of an existing library building, erecting an addition to an 

existing library building, or purchasing the necessary equipment for the library and shall let the contract 

or contracts for the project, when the cost is in excess of $25,000, to the lowest responsible bidder or 

bidders. The board shall not be required to accept a bid that does not meet the library's established 

specifications, terms of delivery, quality, and serviceability requirements. Contracts which, by their 

nature, are not adapted to award by competitive bidding, are not subject to competitive bidding, 

including, but not limited to: 

(1) contracts for the services of individuals possessing a high degree of professional skill where 

the ability or fitness of the individual plays an important part; 

(2) contracts for the printing of finance committee reports and departmental reports; 

(3) contracts for the printing or engraving of bonds, tax warrants and other evidences of 

indebtedness; 

(4) contracts for the maintenance or servicing of, or provision of repair parts for, equipment 

which are made with the manufacturer or authorized service agent of that equipment where 

the provision of parts, maintenance, or servicing can best be performed by the manufacturer 

or authorized service agent; 

(5) purchases and contracts for the use, purchase, delivery, movement, or installation of data 

processing equipment, software, or services and telecommunications and interconnect 

equipment, software, and services; 

(6) contracts for duplicating machines and supplies; 

(7) contracts for utility services such as water, light, heat, telephone or telegraph; 

(8) contracts for goods or services procured from another governmental agency; 

(9) purchases of equipment previously owned by some entity other than the library itself; and 

(10) contracts for goods or services which are economically procurable from only one source, such 

as for the purchase of magazines, books, periodicals, pamphlets, and reports. 

Contracts for emergency expenditures are also exempt from competitive bidding when the emergency 

expenditure is approved by 3/4 of the members of the board. 

The board shall require from the bidders security for the performance of the bids determined by the 

board pursuant to law. The trustees may let the contract or contracts to one or more bidders as they 

determine. 

(Source: P.A. 100-338, eff. 8-25-17.) 

93 



94 

Actual FY18/19 Revenues



95 

Actual FY18/19 Revenues



96 

Actual FY18/19 Revenues



97 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



98 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



99 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



100 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



101 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



102 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



103 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



104 

Actual FY18/19 Expenses



 

1 
 

APPROVED 
LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

PERSONNEL & POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 

August 26, 2019 - 6:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call   

Present: 

Emily Swistak - Secretary | Chair 

Marjorie Bartelli - Vice President 

Thomas Duffy - Trustee 

Thomas Hummel - President 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director/Ex-officio 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director/Ex-officio 

 

Also Present: 

Chris Knight - Recording Secretary 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - None 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the July 12, 2019 Personnel-Policy Committee Meeting 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to approve the minutes of the July 12, 2019 

Personnel-Policy Committee Meeting. Vice President Bartelli seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. LLD Policy 201, Board of Trustees Code of Conduct & Ethics; discussion/draft 

 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the Committee’s edits to the draft.  Committee 

members suggested additional changes. Secretary Swistak stated that the Committee was not 

ready to send the draft to the Board as of yet. 

 

5. Format/approach regarding Director review; discussion 

 

Committee members discussed formats for a Director evaluation. Members reviewed sample 

forms.  Vice President Bartelli provided an additional example for the Committee to review. 

Trustee Duffy discussed goals and asked if the Committee could see more examples from 

organizations other than libraries. 

 

6. Policy review: new, revisions, prioritization - discussion 

 

Trustees discussed ideas for future policy work. President Hummel suggested focusing on the 

segregation of duties for projects and vendor contracts. Vice President Bartelli discussed the 

topic of libraries hiring social workers and asked about homeless patrons. Director Weinstein 

mentioned that the Library has a relationship with DuPage Pads. Trustee Duffy suggested an 

energy conservation policy. Director Weinstein stated that the LLD has an environmental 

responsibility policy last revised in 2002. President Hummel mentioned water conservation and 

solar panels.  

 

105 



 

2 
 

Secretary Swistak stated that the Committee has more work to do on LLD Policy 201/Ethics and 

the Director evaluation. Director Weinstein mentioned that there may be other policies that 

need minimal changes and/or updates. 

 

7. Adjourn 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to adjourn the meeting. Vice President Bartelli seconded. 

Voice Vote - All Aye 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 

 

Recorded by: 

 

_____________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the Personnel & Policy Committee on November 6, 2019. 

Approved by 

 

_____________________________ 

Emily Swistak, Committee Chair 

106 


